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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (audited)

Revenue

Application licenses

Operating expense

Depreciation — equipment
Amortization — software rights
Bad debt expense

Consulting (note 6)

Insurance

Scientific development tax credits
Office

Professional fees

Rent (note 6)

Telephone and telecommunications
Travel

Wages and benefits

Stock based compensation (note 8)
Total operating expense
Operating loss

Other income (expense)

Interest expense (note 7)

Net Loss

Other comprehensive income (loss) — Translation

adjustment
Comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year ended
December 31,
2004

$ 401,536

3,941
138,647
15,568
248,580
3,235
(7,683)
48,214
93,859
29,083
75,718
44,600
260,290
46,463
1,000,515
(598,979)

(27,177)
(626,156)

(27,952)

$  (654,108)

Period beginning
November 12, 2003

$

(inception)
and ending
December 31,
2003

114,824
(114,824

)

(114,824)

2,301
(112,523)
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (audited)

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments for:

Amortization of equipment

Amortization of software rights

Amortization of deferred interest

Changes in non-cash working capital assets and liabilities
net of acquired assets and liabilities due to acquisitions:
Accounts receivable

Scientific development tax credits receivable
Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing

Furniture and equipment

Cash balance from acquisition of subsidiary

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Financing

Proceeds from deposits on share subscriptions
Proceeds from the sale of preference shares
Proceeds from the sale of common shares

Net proceeds from (repayment of) note payable and other
loans

Proceeds from shareholder (note 6)

Proceeds from convertible note payable

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Change in cash during the year

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Year ended
December 31,
2004

$  (626,156)

3,941
138,647
16,185

(122,571)
69,184

(11,659)
7,058
33,644
1,432

(490,295)

(2,156)

(2,156)

175,000
130,000
368,997

(275,811)
135,633
100,000
633,819
(27,952)
113,416

213

$ 113,629

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Period beginning
November 12, 2003

$

(inception)
and ending
December 31,
2003

(114,824)

114,824

208
208
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Redeemable preference shares issued in exchange for

payment of deposit for acquisition of subsidiary $ —
Common shares issued in exchange for payment of deposit

for acquisition of subsidiary $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 150,000

$ 35,000

Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficiency (audited)

For the year ended December 31, 2004 and the period from November 12, 2003,
the date of incorporation, to December 31, 2003

Accumulated
Additional Other

Paid-in ComprehensiveAccumulated

Common Stock Capital Income
Balance, November 12,

2003 (inception) $ —$ —3 —3 —$

Issuance of shares on

incorporation 496,667 — — —

Issuance of shares in
exchange for payment of
deposit for acquisition of

subsidiary 183,334 35,000 — —

Issuance of shares as
compensation for delays
in the acquisition of

subsidiary 250,000 — — —

Foreign exchange
translation — — — 2,301

Net loss — — — —

Balance, December 31,
2003 930,001 35,000 — 2,301
Issuance of shares for

cash 628,176 368,996 — —

Common stock
committed for repayment

of note payable (note 7) — — 30,555 —

Common stock
committed for cash (note

8) — — 175,000 —

Stock based

compensation — 371,700 — —

Deficit

—3$

(114,824)

(114,824)

Shareholder's

Equity

(Deficiency)

35,000

2,301
(114,824)

(77,523)

368,996

30,555

175,000

371,700
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Deferred stock based

compensation (note 8) — (325,237) — — —  (325,237)
Foreign exchange

translation — — —  (27,952) —  (27,952)
Net loss — — — —  (626,156) (626,156)
Balance, December 31,

2004 $1,558,177 $ 450,459 $ 205,555 $ (25,651) $ (740,980) $ (110,617)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

1. Company background

Sona Mobile, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated on November 12, 2003 in the state of Washington. The Company
is a provider of wireless solutions that bring mobility to businesses in the wireless data marketplace. The Company
has customers in the banking, manufacturing, entertainment, and utilities/energy industries.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
These consolidated financial statements are presented in United States dollars and have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and reflect the following policies:

(a) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Sona
Innovations Inc. The subsidiary was acquired December 23, 2003 and the assets and liabilities are included in the
2003 and 2004 consolidated balance sheet. The results of the subsidiary's operations are recorded from the date of
acquisition. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and term deposits with original maturity dates of less than 90 days.
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates market value, and are concentrated in two major
financial institutions.

(c) Foreign currency translation
In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 52 "Foreign Currency Translation", assets and liabilities denominated
in a foreign currency have been translated at the year end rate of exchange. Revenue and expense items have been
translated at the transaction date rate. For the foreign subsidiary which utilizes its local currency as its functional
currency, the resulting translation gains and losses are included in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses
resulting from foreign exchange transactions are reflected in earnings.

(d) Long term investments
Equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of three to
five years.



Edgar Filing: - Form

(e) Measurement uncertainty
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

(f) Software rights
Software rights are recorded at the excess of the purchase price of the subsidiary over the fair value of the subsidiary's
identifiable net tangible assets. The carrying value of the rights is being amortized over the program application's
estimated useful life of four years.

The Company tests for recoverability of software rights when events or changes in circumstance indicate that their
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Circumstances which could trigger
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
a review include, but are not limited to significant decreases in the market price of the assets; significant adverse
changes in the business climate or legal factors; accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount originally
expected for the acquisition or construction of the asset; current period cash flow or operating losses combined with a
history of losses or a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset; and current expectation that the
asset will more likely than not be sold or disposed of significantly before the end of its estimated useful life.

Recoverability is assessed based on the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value which is generally determined
based on the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and the eventual disposal of the asset,
as well as specific appraisal in certain instances. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount is not
recoverable and exceeds fair value.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003 there were no circumstances or events which had occurred which might indicate
that the carrying value of the rights may not be recoverable and therefore no test of the recoverability has been made.

(g) Income taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes" which
requires an asset and liability approach to financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are computed periodically for differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets
and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based on enacted tax laws and rates
applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The income tax
provision is the tax payable or refundable for the period plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax
assets and liabilities.
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(h) Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenue from license and service fees related to customization and implementation of the
software being licensed. Service fees are recorded on a percentage of completion or completed-contract basis
depending on whether or not reliable estimates of the costs to complete the work can be obtained. License fees are
recognized over the service period when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the fee is fixed or
determinable and collection of the receivable is probable. The deferred revenues are amounts received prior to
completion of service.

(i) Research and development
The Company annually incurs costs on activities that related to research and the development of new products.
Research costs are expenses as they are incurred. Costs are reduced by investment tax credits where applicable.

(j) Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These
estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the period
in which they become known.
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

3. Business acquisition

On December 23, 2003 the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding voting shares of Sona Innovations Inc., a
Canadian company that developed the wireless platform upon which the Company's products are based. Prior to the
acquisition the two companies were at arm's length. The consideration for the shares was $132,175 ($175,000
Canadian) in cash and short term notes as well as assumption of $377,644 ($500,000 Canadian) of current debt owed
to the majority shareholder of the investee prior to the acquisition (note 5).

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows:

Cash $ 208
Accounts receivable 9,059
Scientific tax credits receivable 159,616
Prepaid expenses 6,193
Equipment 13,078
Software rights 554,583
742,737
Accounts payable (85,279)
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Accrued liabilities (18,546)
Short term loans (55,079)
Due to shareholder (74,013)
Total purchase price $ 509,820

4. Long term investments

2004 2003
Furniture and office equipment $ 5,293 $ 2,915
Computer and telephone equipment 9,942 10,164
15,235 13,079
Accumulated amortization (3,941) —
$ 11,294 $ 13,079
5. Note payable and other short term loans
2004 2003
Amounts owed to former shareholders of Sona Innovations Inc. -
non
interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment (note 3) $ 55,325 $ 55,079
Debt assumed on acquisition of subsidiary bearing interest at
3.5%
per annum, payable June 23, 2004 (note 3) — 322,520
$ 55,325 $ 377,599

6. Related party transactions
During the year, the Company paid consulting fees to shareholders and directors of the company in the amount of
$215,000 and $48,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The balance due to shareholder of $209,651 is non-interest
bearing, unsecured with no specific terms of repayment.

The Company's subsidiary shares premises with the former majority shareholder of the subsidiary who also owns
250,000 common shares of Sona Mobile, Inc. During 2004 the Company paid rent to the former majority shareholder

in the amount of $22,590 on a month to month basis with no commitment.
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

7. Convertible note payable
In July 2004 the Company issued a note for proceeds for $100,000, its face value. The note is due January 2006 and
bears interest at 12% per annum, payable upon maturity. On the note's due date, 48,500 common shares are to be
issued to the note holder. The note is convertible to 158,730 common shares or $.63 per share, at any time before the
due date.
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In accordance with EITF 98-5 the fair value of the conversion option on the date of issuance was nil as the conversion
price was equal to the current issue price for the shares. The obligation to issue common shares has been valued at the
market price at the time of issue in the amount of $30,555 and is reflected as part of "Other paid-in capital” in
shareholder's equity and the related note discount, netted against the note payable. Interest and amortization of the
discount are charged to income over the term of the note.

On March 2, 2005 the holder of the note exercised the conversion. The other paid-in capital and the carrying value of
the note payable including accrued interest and unamortized discount of $21,580 have been recorded as proceeds for
the issue of the 158,730 shares.

8. Share capital
Redeemable Preference shares

The board of directors has designated 3 million of the 10 million preference shares authorized as Series A preference
shares. The shares are voting, have a non-cumulative dividend rate of 6% and are convertible to common shares on a
one to one basis, subject to certain anti-dilutive provisions. The shares are redeemable at the option of the holder, if
the Company is not sold, merged or subject to a public offering within 5 years of issue. The redemption amount is
equal to their paid up amount plus an additional 6% compounded annually. Should the Company be subject to a public
offering where the offering price is 33 times the issue price and in aggregate greater than $10 million or a majority of
the Series A preferred shareholders provide consent, the shares are subject to a mandatory conversion to common
shares. The holders of the Series A preferred shares have the right to purchase shares offered for sale by the Company
in a number of shares necessary to maintain the holder's pro rata ownership on the basis of common share equivalents
outstanding. Due to the redeemable feature of these shares they have been classified as a liability in the balance sheet.

In December, 2003 1,686,667 Series A preference shares were issued to the Company's founders for nominal
consideration and 500,000 Series A preference shares were issued at $150,000 in repayment of deposits made on the
acquisition of Sona Innovations Inc. as described in note 3. In January and May, 2004 141,112 Series A preference
shares were issued for $130,000 to finance the remainder of the acquisition.

Common shares

In December, 2003 496,667 common shares were issued to the Company's founders for nominal consideration,
183,334 shares were issued for $35,000 in repayment of deposits made on the acquisition of Sona Innovations Inc. as
described in note 3 and 250,000 shares were issued for nominal consideration to the former majority shareholder of
the subsidiary as compensation for delays in closing the acquisition. In January and June, 2004 and during August to
October, 2004 an aggregate of 628,176 shares were issued for $368,997. The proceeds of these issues were used to
pay the remaining notes payable and debt assumed in the acquisition of the subsidiary as described in note 3, as well
as to finance current operations.

In December 2004 the Company received $175,000 for 101,157 shares issued January 3, 2005. This amount is
reflected as "Other paid-in capital” in the balance sheet.
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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December 31, 2004 and 2003

8. Share capital (continued)

On November 18, 2004 the board authorized 590,000 shares to be issued to various employees and a consultant for no
consideration. These shares were issued January 3, 2005. The value of these shares is $371,700, of which $46,463 has
been recorded as expense in the current period and $325,237 has been recorded as deferred stock based compensation
in the statement of shareholders' deficiency.

9. Financial instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, deposits on share
subscriptions, notes payable, other short term loans and amount due to shareholder.

The Company is subject to credit risk with respect to its accounts receivable to the extent that debtors do not meet
their obligations. The Company monitors the age of its accounts receivables and may delay development or terminate
information fees if debtors do not meet payment terms.

The Company is subject to foreign currency risk with respect to financial instruments denominated in a foreign
currency.

A reasonable estimate of fair value of the amount due to shareholder and other short term loans could not be made as
the timing of payments, if any, is not known.

Due to the short period to maturity, the book value of the remaining financial instruments approximates their fair
value.

10. Income taxes

Deferred tax benefits arising from net operating loss and scientific research and experimental development
expenditure carryforwards were determined using the applicable statutory rates. The net operating loss carry forward
balances vary from the applicable percentages of net loss due to expenses, primarily amortization of software rights,
recognized under generally accepted accounting principles, but not deductible for tax purposes.

The Company has Canadian scientific research and experimental development expenditures of approximately
$815,000 that may be carried forward indefinitely and applied to reduce taxable income in future years. In addition,
the Company has losses carried forward for Canadian tax purposes which may be applied to reduce taxable income in
the amount of approximately $240,000. Losses in the amount of $52,000 expire in 2009 and the remaining $188,000
expire in 2014.

Net operating loss carryforwards available for U.S. federal and state tax purposes of approximately $287,000. Of these
losses $115,000 expires in 2023 and 2013 for federal and state purposes, respectively, and $172,000 expires in 2024
and 2014 for federal and state purposes, respectively.

The utilization of the net operating losses to offset future taxable income may be limited under U.S. tax laws.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the Company had net deferred tax assets of approximately $447,000 and $336,000
arising from the net operating loss and scientific research and experimental development expenditure carryforwards.
These deferred tax assets are fully offset by deferred tax liability arising from the software rights, the amortization of
which is not deductible for tax purposes and the remainder by valuation allowances.
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The deferred tax liability related to the software is $145,000 and $194,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003. The
Company has established a valuation allowance of 100% to the extent of the deferred net tax assets since it is more
likely than not that the benefit will not be realized. During 2004 and 2003 the valuation allowance increased by
$160,000 and $142,000.
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Sona Mobile, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

11. Commitment

On December 29, 2004, Sona Innovations Inc. signed a letter of intent to acquire the assets and employees contracts of
Smart Video Canada Inc. for $83,195 ($100,000 Canadian). An initial deposit of $4,160 ($5,000 Canadian) was paid
as at December 31, 2004 and remainder to be paid throughout 2005.

12.  Subsequent events

On January 12, 2005 Sona Mobile, Inc. signed a non-binding Letter of Intent to merge with Perfectdata Corporation.
Under the terms of the letter of intent, the shareholders of Sona Mobile, Inc. initially will own 80% of the merged
entity and could own an additional 5% pursuant to a formula to be set forth in the merger agreement. The transaction
is subject to completion of due diligence, execution of a definitive merger agreement, and satisfying other material
conditions. On March 10, 2005, the parties executed a definitive agreement.

In addition, on March 7, 2005 the Company issued 250,000 common shares to accredited investors for proceeds of
$475,000 to finance current operations.
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APPENDIX I (AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER)

PERFECTDATA CORPORATION

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
(As amended on October 15, 2002)

Organization
This Charter governs the operations of the Audit Committee (the "Committee") of PerfectData Corporation (the

"Company"). The Committee shall review and reassess this Charter at least annually and obtain the approval of the
Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") of its recommendations as to proposed changes or additions to this

10
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Charter. The Committee shall be appointed by the Board and shall consist of at least three directors appointed
annually and serving at the pleasure of the Board, each of whom is independent of management and the Company.

A member of the Committee shall be considered "independent"” if he or she has no relationship that may interfere with
the exercise of his or her judgment, independent from management and the Company. So long as the Company's
Common Stock shall be traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. ("Nasdaq"), or, if in the future the Common Stock
shall be listed on the American Stock Exchange LLC, the Board shall interpret "independence"” as defined in the rules
of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (the "NASD"). If the Common Stock should ever be listed on
the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the Board shall interpret "independence" as defined by such Exchange or, if
appropriate, continue to use the definition in the NASD rules. In addition, the Board shall interpret "independence"
pursuant to any rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"). Subject to such
regulations as the Commission may hereafter adopt, for a member of the Committee to be independent, he or she shall
not, other than in his or her capacity as a member of the Committee, the Board or any other Board committee, (a)
accept any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee from the Company or (b) be an affiliated person of the
Company or any subsidiary thereof.

All Committee members shall, at the time of appointment, be able to read and understand fundamental financial
statements, including the Company's balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement. At least one member
shall have past employment experience in finance or accounting, requisite professional certification in accounting, or
any other comparable experience or background which results in the individual's financial sophistication, including
being or having been a chief executive officer, chief financial officer or other senior officer with financial oversight
responsibilities. At least one member shall qualify as a "financial expert" under the rules of the Commission.

For meetings of the Committee two members (a majority if there are more than three members of the Committee) of
the Committee shall constitute a quorum. No action may be taken except by the affirmative vote of at least two
members (a majority if there are more than three members of the Committee) of the Committee. In the absence or
disqualification of a member of the Committee, the member or members present at any meeting and not disqualified
from voting, whether or not he, she or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the
Board to act at the meeting in place of any such absent or disqualified member, provided that a majority of the persons
acting at the meeting is independent of management and the Company.

Statement of Policy

The Committee shall provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility to the shareholders,
potential shareholders, the investment community and others relating to the Company's financial statements and the
financial reporting process, the systems of internal accounting and financial controls, the internal audit function (when
established), the annual independent audit of the Company's financial statements and the legal compliance and ethics
programs as established by management and the Board. In so doing, it is the responsibility of the Committee to
maintain free and open communication between the Committee, the independent auditors, the internal auditors (when
engaged) and management of the Company. In discharging its oversight role, the Committee is empowered to
investigate any

I-1

matter brought to its attention with full access to all books, records, facilities and personnel of the Company and the
power to retain outside counsel, including, but not limited to, outside counsel to the Company, or other advisors for
this purpose and to consult such other entities having a relationship with the Company, including, without limitation,

11
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the Company's investment bankers or financial analysts who follow the Company, as the Committee deems
appropriate. The Committee shall determine the compensation for such counsel or other advisors and the Company
shall make appropriate funds available to the Committee for such purpose.

Responsibilities and Processes

The primary responsibility of the Committee is to oversee the Company's financial reporting process on behalf of the
Board and report the results of its activities to the Board and, where required or deemed appropriate, to the
shareholders of the Company. Not in limitation of the foregoing, the Committee shall prepare annually the Audit
Committee Report as required by Item 306 of the Commission's Regulation S-K and Regulation S-B, whichever is
applicable to the Company, for inclusion in the Company's proxy statement for its Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Management is responsible for preparing the Company's financial statements, and the independent auditors are
responsible for auditing those financial statements. The Committee, in carrying out its responsibilities, believes its
policies and procedures should remain flexible, in order to best react to changing conditions and circumstances. The
Committee should take the appropriate actions to set the overall corporate "tone" for quality financial reporting, sound
business risk practices and ethical behavior.

The following shall be the principal recurring processes of the Committee in carrying out its oversight responsibilities.
The processes are set forth as a guide with the understanding that the Committee may supplement them as appropriate.

* Annually, the Committee shall review and select the Company's independent auditors, subject to shareholders'
approval. The Committee shall have the sole authority to determine the compensation to be paid to the independent
auditors for its services in preparing an audit report and in reviewing the financial statements of the Company and the
Company shall make appropriate funds available for such purpose and for the services provided in the succeeding
sentence. The Audit Committee shall approve in advance the retention of the independent auditors for any non-audit
service and the fee for such service. The term "non-audit service" shall mean any professional service provided to the
Company other than those provided in connection with an audit or a review of the financial statements of the
Company. The Committee's approval in advance may be waived with respect to a non-audit service only if (a) the
service was not recognized by the Company at the time of the audit engagement to be a non-audit service; (b) the
aggregate amount paid for all non-audit services is not more than five percent of the total amount of revenues paid by
the Company to the independent auditor during the fiscal year when the non-audit services were performed; (c) the
service is promptly brought to the attention of the Committee; (d) the Committee approves the activity prior to the
conclusion of the audit; and (e) the Commission by regulation otherwise permits a waiver.

* The Committee shall have a clear understanding with management and the independent auditors that the
independent auditors are accountable to the Audit Committee directly and the Board indirectly as the representatives
of the Company's shareholders. The Committee shall have the ultimate authority and responsibility to evaluate, and
the sole authority, where appropriate, to replace, the independent auditors. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors their independence from management and the Company and the matters included in the written disclosures
required by the Independence Standards Board. At least annually the Committee shall (1) review resumes of key
partners and managers of the independent auditors in order to evaluate the experience and qualifications of those who
perform services for the Company and (2) review a report by the independent auditors describing (a) the firm's
internal quality control procedures, (b) any material issues raised by the most recent internal quality control review or
peer review, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities within the preceding five
years, respecting one or more independent audits carried out by the firm, and any steps taken to deal with any such
issues, and (c) all relationships between the independent auditors and the Company.

I-2
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* The Committee shall approve the scope of the annual audit by the independent auditors and authorize any
supplementary reviews, investigations or audits as it shall deem advisable. The independent auditors shall timely
report to the Committee all critical accounting policies and practices to be used and all alternative treatments of
financial information within generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) that have been discussed with
management, the ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and the treatment preferred by the
independent auditors. The independent auditors shall also timely report to the Committee any accounting
disagreements between the independent auditors and management and any other material written communications
between the independent auditors and management. Also, the Committee shall discuss with management, the internal
auditors (when engaged) and the independent auditors the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and financial
controls, including the Company's system to monitor and manage business risk, and legal and ethical compliance
programs. Further, the Committee shall meet separately with the internal auditors (when engaged) and the independent
auditors, with and without management present, to discuss the results of their examinations and any problems or
difficulties encountered by the independent auditors and management's response thereto. The Committee shall also
review in connection with its annual review of the audited financial statements all non-audited services performed by
the independent auditor to confirm that each is permitted by law or regulation and was previously approved by the
Committee or such pre-approval was not required as provided above.

* The Committee shall review the interim financial statements with management and the independent auditors prior
to the filing of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Form 10-QSB. Also, the Committee shall discuss the
results of the quarterly review, including, without limitation, the Company's disclosures in the Quarterly Report under
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and any other matters
required to be communicated to the Committee by the independent auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards. The Chairperson of the Committee (or, in the event of his or her unavailability, a member) may represent
the entire Committee for the purposes of this review.

* The Committee shall review with management and the independent auditors the financial statements to be included
in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K or Form 10-KSB (or the annual report to shareholders if distributed
prior to the filing of the Form 10-K or Form 10-KSB), including (a) the Company's disclosures under "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and (b) their judgment about the quality,
not just acceptability, of accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant judgments, particularly insofar as
they relate to critical accounting estimates, and the clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements. Also, the
Committee shall discuss the results of the annual audit and any other matters required to be communicated to the
Committee by the independent auditors under generally accepted auditing standards. Without limiting any of the
foregoing, the Committee shall (x) review with management and the independent auditors the effect of regulatory and
accounting initiatives on the Company's financial statements, including, without limitation, the adoption of material
accounting policies, and (y), where deemed necessary or appropriate, discuss with the national office of the
independent auditors issues on which it was consulted by the audit team assigned to the Company and matters of audit
quality and consistency.

* The Committee shall review the independent auditors' management letters and other material written
communications between the independent auditors and the Company with the independent auditors and with the
corporate staff and engage in the appropriate follow-up of a recommendation in any such management letter or other
communication. The Committee shall also review with management and the independent auditors any correspondence
with regulators or governmental agencies, and any employee complaints or published reports, which raise material
issues regarding the Company's financial statements and/or accounting policies.

* The Committee shall determine the appropriate actions that should be taken regarding all irregularities uncovered.
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* The Committee shall establish procedures for (a) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the
Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters and (b) the confidential, anonymous
submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.
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* The Committee shall perform such other functions as may be required or deemed appropriate by the Commission or
by the national securities exchange or national securities association on which the securities of the Company are
publicly traded (currently the NASD for Nasdaq) for an audit committee to perform.

* The Committee shall report to the Board on the activities and findings of the Committee and, when appropriate,
make recommendations to the Board based on these findings.
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APPENDIX II (COMPENSATION AND NOMINATING COMMITTEE CHARTER)

Charter for the Compensation and Nominating Committee
of
PerfectData Corporation

Purpose

The Compensation and Nominating Committee (the "Committee") is appointed by the Board of Directors (the
"Board") of PerfectData Corporation (the "Company") to:

* Select or recommend to the Board director nominees for the next annual meeting of
shareholders; and
* Determine, or recommend to the Board for determination, the compensation of the Chief
Executive Officer.

Committee Membership

The Committee will be composed of three directors who satisfy the definition of "independent" under the listing
standards of the American Stock Exchange (AMEX) and the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. The Committee members will
be appointed by the Board and may be removed by the Board in its discretion. The Committee shall have the authority
to delegate any of its responsibilities to subcommittees as the Committee may deem appropriate, provided the
subcommittees are composed entirely of independent directors.

Meetings

The Committee shall meet as often as its members deem necessary to perform the Committee's responsibilities.

14
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Committee Authority and Responsibilities

The Committee, to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate, will:

* Identify individuals qualified to become members of the Board.

* Select , or recommend to the Board, director nominees to be presented for shareholder

approval at the annual meeting.

* Select, or recommend to the Board, director nominees to fill vacancies on the Board as

necessary.

* Review the individual goals and objectives, and evaluate the performance of the Chief

Executive Officer, and set the Chief Executive Officer's compensation based on this evaluation.
At the Company's expense, the Committee will have the authority, to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate, to
retain a firm to be used to identify director candidates and/or to assist in determining the compensation of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Committee shall have sole authority to retain and terminate any such firm, including sole
authority to approve the firm's fees and other retention terms. The Committee shall also have authority, to the extent it
deems necessary or appropriate, to retain other advisors. The Committee will review and reassess the adequacy of this
charter annually and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval. The Committee will annually
evaluate the Committee's own performance.

ISubject to the contractual or other commitments of the Company to provide third parties with the ability
to nominate and/ or appoint directors, the selection and nomination of such directors is not subject to
approval by the Nominating Committee.
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APPENDIX TIII

AMENDED AND RESTATED STOCK OPTION PLAN OF 2000
OF
PERFECTDATA CORPORATION

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan of 2000 of PerfectData Corporation (the
"Plan") is to aid PerfectData Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), in attracting, retaining,
motivating and rewarding employees, non-employee directors, and other persons who provide substantial services to
the Company or its subsidiaries or affiliates, to provide for equitable and competitive compensation opportunities, to
recognize individual contributions and reward achievement of Company goals, and promote the creation of long-term
value for stockholders by closely aligning the interests of Participants with those of stockholders. The Plan authorizes
stock-based and cash-based incentives for Participants. The Plan amends and restates the Stock Option Plan of 2000
of PerfectData Corporation (the "Original Plan") approved by the Board on May 22, 2000 and ratified by the
Company's shareholders on October 19, 2000.

2. Definitions. In addition to the terms defined in Section 1 above and elsewhere in the Plan, the following
capitalized terms used in the Plan have the respective meanings set forth in this Section:

"Annual Incentive Award" means a type of Performance Award granted to a Participant under Section 7(c)

representing a conditional right to receive cash, Stock or other Awards or payments, as determined by the Committee,
based on performance in a performance period of one fiscal year or a portion thereof.
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"Award" means any Option, SAR, Restricted Stock, Deferred Stock, Stock granted as a bonus or in lieu of another
award, Dividend Equivalent, Other Stock-Based Award, Performance Award or Annual Incentive Award, together
with any related right or interest, granted to a Participant under the Plan.

"Beneficiary" means the legal representatives of the Participant's estate entitled by will or the laws of descent and
distribution to receive the benefits under a Participant's Award upon a Participant's death, provided that, if and to the
extent authorized by the Committee, a Participant may be permitted to designate a Beneficiary, in which case the
"Beneficiary" instead will be the person, persons, trust or trusts (if any are then surviving) which have been designated
by the Participant in his or her most recent written beneficiary designation filed with the Committee to receive the
benefits specified under the Participant's Award upon such Participant's death. Unless otherwise determined by the
Committee, any designation of a Beneficiary other than a Participant's spouse shall be subject to the written consent of
such spouse.

"Board" means the Company's Board of Directors.

"Cause" shall mean "Cause" as such term is defined in the Participant's employment agreement, or if none shall exist,
as any of the following: (a) the Participant's conviction of any crime (whether or not involving the Company)
constituting a felony in the jurisdiction involved; (b) conduct of the Participant related to the Participant's employment
for which either criminal or civil penalties against the Participant or the Company may be sought; (c) material
violation of the Company's policies, including, but not limited to those relating to sexual harassment, the disclosure or
misuse of confidential information, or those set forth in Company manuals or statements of policy; or (d) serious
neglect or misconduct in the performance of the Participant's duties for the Company or willful or repeated failure or
refusal to perform such duties.

"Change in Control" and related terms have the meanings specified in Section 9.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. References to any provision of the Code or regulation
(including a proposed regulation) thereunder shall include any successor provisions and regulations.

"Committee" means the Compensation and Nominating Committee of the Board, the composition and governance of
which is established in the Committee's Charter as approved from time to time by the Board and subject to any
corporate governance documents of the Company, including the rules and regulations of any exchange or market on
which the Company's securities are then listed and/or traded.
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No action of the Committee shall be void or deemed to be without authority due to the failure of any member, at the

time the action was taken, to meet any qualification standard set forth in the Committee Charter or this Plan. The full
Board may perform any function of the Committee hereunder, in which case the term "Committee" shall refer to the

Board.

"Covered Employee" means an Eligible Person who is a Covered Employee as specified in Section 12(j).
"Deferred Stock" means a right, granted to a Participant under Section 6(e), to receive Stock or other Awards or a

combination thereof at the end of a specified deferral period. Deferred Stock may be denominated as "stock units,"
"restricted stock units," "phantom shares," "performance shares," or other appellations.
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"Disability" shall mean a disability described in Section 422(c) (6) of the Code. The existence of a Disability shall be
determined by the Committee in its absolute discretion.

"Dividend Equivalent" means a right, granted to a Participant under Section 6(g), to receive cash, Stock, other Awards
or other property equal in value to all or a specified portion of the dividends paid with respect to a specified number of
shares of Stock.

"Effective Date" means the effective date specified in Section 12(p).
"Eligible Person" has the meaning specified in Section 5.
"Employee Stock Purchase Plan" has the meaning specified in Section 11.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. References to any provision of the
Exchange Act or rule (including a proposed rule) thereunder shall include any successor provisions and rules.

"Fair Market Value" means, with respect to a share of Stock on an applicable date:

i. If the principal market for the Stock (the "Market") is a national securities exchange or the
National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System ("NASDAQ")
National Market or SmallCap Market, the last sale price or, if no reported sales take place on
the applicable date, the average of the high bid and low asked price of Stock as reported for
such Market on such date or, if no such quotation is made on such date, on the next preceding
day on which there were quotations, provided that such quotations shall have been made within
the ten (10) business days preceding the applicable date;

ii. If the Market is the NASDAQ National List, the NASDAQ Supplemental List or another
market, the average of the high bid and low asked price for Stock on the applicable date, or, if
no such quotations shall have been made on such date, on the next preceding day on which
there were quotations, provided that such quotations shall have been made within the ten (10)
business days preceding the applicable date; or,

iii. In the event that neither paragraph i. nor ii. shall apply, the Fair Market Value of a share of
Stock on any day shall be determined in good faith by the Committee in a manner consistently
applied.

"Incentive Stock Option" or "ISO" means any Option designated as an incentive stock option within the meaning of
Code Section 422 or any successor provision thereto and qualifying thereunder.

"Option" means a right, granted to a Participant under Section 6(b) or 11, to purchase Stock or other Awards at a
specified price during specified time periods.

"Other Stock-Based Awards" means Awards granted to a Participant under Section 6(h).

"Participant" means a person who has been granted an Award under the Plan that remains outstanding, including a
person who is no longer an Eligible Person.

"Performance Award" means a conditional right, granted to a Participant under Sections 6(i) and 7, to receive cash,
Stock or other Awards or payments, as determined by the Committee, based upon performance criteria specified by

the Committee.

"Qualified Member" means a member of the Committee who is a "Non-Employee Director" within the meaning of
Rule 16b-3 (b) (3) and an "outside director" within the meaning of Regulation 1.162-27 under Code Section 162(m).
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"Restricted Stock" means Stock granted to a Participant under Section 6(d) which is subject to certain restrictions and
to a risk of forfeiture.

"Retirement” means termination of employment from the Company by a Participant whose age and years of service
together equal 65.

"Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3, as from time to time in effect and applicable to Participants, promulgated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission under Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

"Stock" means the Company's Common Stock, and any other equity securities of the Company that may be substituted
or resubstituted for Stock pursuant to Section 12 (c) .

"Stock Appreciation Rights" or "SAR" means a right granted to a Participant under Section 6(c).
3. Administration.

(a) Authority of the Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee, which shall have full and final
authority, in each case subject to and consistent with the provisions of the Plan, to select Eligible Persons to become
Participants; to grant Awards; to determine the type and number of Awards, the dates on which Awards may be
exercised and on which the risk of forfeiture or deferral period relating to Awards shall lapse or terminate, the
acceleration of any such dates, the expiration date of any Award, whether, to what extent, and under what
circumstances an Award may be settled, or the exercise price of an Award may be paid, in cash, Stock, other Awards,
or other property, and other terms and conditions of, and all other matters relating to, Awards; to prescribe documents
evidencing or setting terms of Awards (such Award documents need not be identical for each Participant),
amendments thereto, and rules and regulations for the administration of the Plan and amendments thereto; to construe
and interpret the Plan and Award documents and correct defects, supply omissions or reconcile inconsistencies
therein; and to make all other decisions and determinations as the Committee may deem necessary or advisable for the
administration of the Plan. Decisions of the Committee with respect to the administration and interpretation of the
Plan shall be final, conclusive, and binding upon all persons interested in the Plan, including Participants,
Beneficiaries, transferees under Section 12(b) and other persons claiming rights from or through a Participant, and
stockholders. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Board shall perform the functions of the Committee for purposes of
granting Awards under the Plan to non-employee directors (authority with respect to other aspects of non-employee
director awards is not exclusive to the Board, however).

(b) Manner of Exercise of Committee Authority. At anytime that a member of the Committee is not a Qualified
Member, any action of the Committee relating to an Award intended by the Committee to qualify as
"performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 162(m) and regulations thereunder or
intended to be covered by an exemption under Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act may be taken by a subcommittee,
designated by the Committee or the Board, composed solely of two or more Qualified Members or may be taken by
the Committee but with each such member who is not a Qualified Member abstaining or recusing himself or herself
from such action, provided that, upon such abstention or recusal, the Committee remains composed of two or more
Qualified Members. Such action, authorized by such a subcommittee or by the Committee upon the abstention or
recusal of such non-Qualified Member(s), shall be the action of the Committee for purposes of the Plan. The express
grant of any specific power to the Committee, and the taking of any action by the Committee, shall not be construed as
limiting any power or authority of the Committee. To the fullest extent authorized under Section 157(c) and other
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applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law, the Committee may delegate to officers or managers
of the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate, or committees thereof, the authority, subject to such terms as the
Committee shall determine, to perform such functions, including administrative functions, as the Committee may
determine, to the extent that such delegation will not cause Awards intended to qualify as "performance-based
compensation" under Code Section 162(m) to fail to so qualify.

(c) Limitation of Liability. The Committee and each member thereof, and any person acting pursuant to authority
delegated by the Committee, shall be entitled, in good faith, to rely or act upon any report or other information
furnished by any executive officer, other officer or employee of the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, the
Company's independent auditors, consultants or any other agents assisting
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in the administration of the Plan. Members of the Committee, any person acting pursuant to authority delegated by the
Committee, and any officer or employee of the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate acting at the direction or on behalf
of the Committee or a delegee shall not be personally liable for any action or determination taken or made in good
faith with respect to the Plan, and shall, to the extent permitted by law, be fully indemnified and protected by the
Company with respect to any such action or determination.

4. Stock Subject to Plan.

(a) Overall Number of Shares Available for Delivery. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 12(c), the
shares of Stock reserved and available for delivery in connection with Awards under the Plan shall be (i) 5,000,000
shares and (ii) the number of shares which become available in accordance with Section 4(b) after the Effective Date.
In order that applicable regulations under the Code relating to ISOs shall be satisfied, the maximum number of shares
of Stock that may be delivered upon exercise of ISOs shall be the number specified in clause (i) of the first sentence of
this Section 4(a), and, if necessary to satisfy such regulations, that same maximum limit shall apply to the number of
shares of Stock that may be delivered in connection with each other type of Award under the Plan (applicable
separately to each type of Award). Any shares of Stock delivered under the Plan shall consist of authorized and
unissued shares or treasury shares.

(b) Share Counting Rules. The Committee may adopt reasonable counting procedures to ensure appropriate
counting, avoid double counting (as, for example, in the case of tandem or substitute awards) and make adjustments if
the number of shares of Stock actually delivered differs from the number of shares previously counted in connection
with an Award. Shares that are potentially deliverable under an Award under the Plan that are canceled, expired,
forfeited, settled in cash or otherwise terminated without a delivery of such shares to the Participant will not be
counted as delivered under the Plan. Shares that have been issued in connection with an Award (e.g., Restricted Stock)
that is canceled, forfeited, or settled in cash such that those shares are returned to the Company will again be available
for Awards. Shares withheld in payment of the exercise price or taxes relating to an Award and shares equal to the
number surrendered in payment of any exercise price or taxes relating to an Award shall be deemed to constitute
shares not delivered to the Participant and shall be deemed to be available for Awards under the Plan. The foregoing
notwithstanding, if issued shares are returned to the Company, including upon a cash out of Restricted Stock,
surrender of shares in payment of an exercise price or taxes relating to an Award, or withholding of shares in payment
of taxes upon vesting of Restricted Stock, such shares shall not become available again under the Plan if the
transaction resulting in the return of shares occurs more than ten years after the date of the most recent shareholder
approval of the Plan, and otherwise shares shall not become available under this Section 4(b) in an event that would
constitute a "material revision" of the Plan subject to shareholder approval under then applicable rules of the
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NASDAQ. In addition, in the case of any Award granted in substitution for an award of a company or business
acquired by the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, shares issued or issuable in connection with such substitute
Award shall not be counted against the number of shares reserved under the Plan, but shall be available under the Plan
by virtue of the Company's assumption of the plan or arrangement of the acquired company or business. This Section
4(b) shall apply to the share limit imposed to conform to the Treasury regulations governing ISOs only to the extent
consistent with applicable regulations relating to ISOs under the Code. Because shares will count against the number
reserved in Section 4(a) upon delivery, and subject to the share counting rules under this Section 4(b), the Committee
may determine that Awards may be outstanding that relate to a greater number of shares than the aggregate remaining
available under the Plan, so long as Awards will not result in delivery and vesting of shares in excess of the number
then available under the Plan.

5. Eligibility and Certain Award Limitations.

(a) Eligibility. Awards may be granted under the Plan only to Eligible Persons. For purposes of the Plan, an
"Eligible Person" means an employee of the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate, including any executive officer, a
non-employee director of the Company, a consultant or other person who provides substantial services to the
Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, and any person who has been offered employment by the Company or a
subsidiary or affiliate, provided that such prospective employee may
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not receive any payment or exercise any right relating to an Award until such person has commenced employment
with the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate. An employee on leave of absence may be considered as still in the
employ of the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate for purposes of eligibility for participation in the Plan. For
purposes of the Plan, a joint venture in which the Company or a subsidiary has a substantial direct or indirect equity
investment shall be deemed an affiliate, if so determined by the Committee.

(b) Per-Person Award Limitations. In each calendar year during any part of which the Plan is in effect, an Eligible
Person may be granted Awards intended to qualify as "performance-based compensation" under Code Section 162(m)
under each of Section 6(b), 6(c), 6(d), 6(e), 6(f), 6(g) or 6(h) relating to up to his or her Annual Limit (such Annual
Limit to apply separately to the type of Award authorized under each specified subsection, except that the limitation
applies to Dividend Equivalents under Section 6(g) only if such Dividend Equivalents are granted separately from and
not as a feature of another Award). Subject to Section 4(a), a Participant's Annual Limit, in any year during any part of
which the Participant is then eligible under the Plan, shall equal 500,000 shares plus the amount of the Participant's
unused Annual Limit relating to the same type of Award as of the close of the previous year, subject to adjustment as
provided in Section 12(c). In the case of an Award which is not valued in a way in which the limitation set forth in the
preceding sentence would operate as an effective limitation satisfying Treasury Regulation 1.162-27(e)(4) (including a
Performance Award under Section 7 not related to an Award specified in Section 6), an Eligible Person may not be
granted Awards authorizing the earning during any calendar year of an amount that exceeds the Participant's Annual
Limit, which for this purpose shall equal $500,000 plus the amount of the Participant's unused cash Annual Limit as of
the close of the previous year (this limitation is separate and not affected by the number of Awards granted during
such calendar year subject to the limitation in the preceding sentence). For this purpose, (i) "earning" means satisfying
performance conditions so that an amount becomes payable, without regard to whether it is to be paid currently or on

a deferred basis or continues to be subject to any service requirement or other non-performance condition, and (ii) a
Participant's Annual Limit is used to the extent an amount or number of shares may be potentially earned or paid
under an Award, regardless of whether such amount or shares are in fact earned or paid.
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6. Specific Terms of Awards.

(a) General. Awards may be granted on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 6. In addition, the
Committee may impose on any Award or the exercise thereof, at the date of grant or thereafter (subject to Section
12(e)), such additional terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan, as the Committee shall
determine, including terms requiring forfeiture of Awards in the event of termination of employment or service by the
Participant and terms permitting a Participant to make elections relating to his or her Award. The Committee shall
retain full power and discretion with respect to any term or condition of an Award that is not mandatory under the
Plan. The Committee shall require the payment of lawful consideration for an Award to the extent necessary to satisfy
the requirements of the Delaware General Corporation Law, and may otherwise require payment of consideration for
an Award except as limited by the Plan.

(b) Options. The Committee is authorized to grant Options to Participants on the following terms and conditions:

(1) Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of Stock purchasable under an Option (including both ISOs and
non-qualified Options) shall be determined by the Committee, provided that such exercise price shall be not less than
the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on the date of grant of such Option, subject to Section 8(a).

(i) Option Term; Time and Method of Exercise. The Committee shall determine the term of each Option,
provided that in no event shall the term of any ISO or SAR in tandem therewith exceed a period of ten years from the
date of grant. The Committee shall determine the time or times at which or the circumstances under which an Option
may be exercised in whole or in part (including based on achievement of performance goals and/or future service
requirements), the methods by which such exercise price may be paid or deemed to be paid and the form of such
payment (subject to Section 12(k)), including, without limitation, cash, Stock (including through withholding of Stock
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deliverable upon exercise, if such withholding will not result in additional accounting expense to the Company), other
Awards or awards granted under other plans of the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate, or other property
(including through "cashless exercise" arrangements, to the extent permitted by applicable law), and the methods by or
forms in which Stock will be delivered or deemed to be delivered in satisfaction of Options to Participants (including
deferred delivery of shares representing the Option "profit," at the election of the Participant or as mandated by the
Committee, with such deferred shares subject to any vesting, forfeiture or other terms as the Committee may specify).

(i) ISOs. The terms of any ISO granted under the Plan shall comply in all respects with the provisions of Code
Section 422, including but not limited to the requirement that no ISO shall be granted more than ten years after the
adoption of the Original Plan.

(c) Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee is authorized to grant SARs to Participants on the following terms
and conditions:

(i) Right to Payment. A SAR shall confer on the Participant to whom it is granted a right to receive, upon exercise
thereof, the excess of (A) the Fair Market Value of one share of Stock on the date of exercise (or, in the case of a
"Limited SAR," the Fair Market Value determined by reference to the Change in Control Price, as defined under
Section 9(c) hereof) over (B) the grant price of the SAR as determined by the Committee, which grant price shall be
not less than the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on the date of grant of such SAR.
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(i) Other Terms. The Committee shall determine at the date of grant or thereafter, the time or times at which and
the circumstances under which a SAR may be exercised in whole or in part (including based on achievement of
performance goals and/or future service requirements), the method of exercise, method of settlement, form of
consideration payable in settlement, method by or forms in which Stock will be delivered or deemed to be delivered to
Participants, whether or not a SAR shall be free-standing or in tandem or combination with any other Award, and the
maximum term of an SAR, which in no event shall exceed a period of ten years from the date of grant. Limited SARs
that may only be exercised in connection with a Change in Control or other event as specified by the Committee may
be granted on such terms, not inconsistent with this Section 6(c), as the Committee may determine. The Committee
may require that an outstanding Option be exchanged for an SAR exercisable for Stock having vesting, expiration, and
other terms substantially the same as the Option, so long as such exchange will not result in additional accounting
expense to the Company.

(d) Restricted Stock. The Committee is authorized to grant Restricted Stock to Participants on the following terms
and conditions:

(i) Grant and Restrictions. Restricted Stock shall be subject to such restrictions on transferability, risk of forfeiture
and other restrictions, if any, as the Committee may impose, which restrictions may lapse separately or in combination
at such times, under such circumstances (including based on achievement of performance goals and/or future service
requirements), in such installments or otherwise and under such other circumstances as the Committee may determine
at the date of grant or thereafter. Except to the extent restricted under the terms of the Plan and any Award document
relating to the Restricted Stock, a Participant granted Restricted Stock shall have all of the rights of a stockholder,
including the right to vote the Restricted Stock and the right to receive dividends thereon (subject to any mandatory
reinvestment or other requirement imposed by the Committee).

(i) Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, upon termination of employment or service
during the applicable restriction period, Restricted Stock that is at that time subject to restrictions shall be forfeited
and reacquired by the Company; provided that the Committee may provide, by rule or regulation or in any Award
document, or may determine in any individual case, that restrictions or forfeiture conditions relating to Restricted
Stock will lapse in whole or in part, including in the event of terminations resulting from specified causes.

(iii) Certificates for Stock. Restricted Stock granted under the Plan may be evidenced in such manner as the
Committee shall determine. If certificates representing Restricted Stock are registered
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in the name of the participant, the Committee may require that such certificates bear an appropriate legend referring to
the terms, conditions and restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock, that the Company retain physical possession
of the certificates, and that the participant deliver a stock power to the Company, endorsed in blank, relating to the
Restricted Stock.

(iv) Dividends and Splits. As a condition to the grant of an Award of Restricted Stock, the Committee may require
that any dividends paid on a share of Restricted Stock shall be either (A) paid with respect to such Restricted Stock at
the dividend payment date in cash, in kind, or in a number of shares of unrestricted Stock having a Fair Market Value
equal to the amount of such dividends, or (B) automatically reinvested in additional Restricted Stock or held in kind,

which shall be subject to the same terms as applied to the original Restricted Stock to which it relates, or (C) deferred
as to payment, either as a cash deferral or with the amount or value thereof automatically deemed reinvested in shares
of Deferred Stock, other Awards or other investment vehicles, subject to such terms as the Committee shall determine
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or permit a Participant to elect. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, Stock distributed in connection with a
Stock split or Stock dividend, and other property distributed as a dividend, shall be subject to restrictions and a risk of
forfeiture to the same extent as the Restricted Stock with respect to which such Stock or other property has been
distributed.

(e) Deferred Stock. The Committee is authorized to grant Deferred Stock to Participants, which are rights to
receive Stock, other Awards, or a combination thereof at the end of a specified deferral period, subject to the
following terms and conditions:

(i) Award and Restrictions. Issuance of Stock will occur upon expiration of the deferral period specified for an
Award of Deferred Stock by the Committee (or, if permitted by the Committee, as elected by the Participant). In
addition, Deferred Stock shall be subject to such restrictions on transferability, risk of forfeiture and other restrictions,
if any, as the Committee may impose, which restrictions may lapse at the expiration of the deferral period or at earlier
specified times (including based on achievement of performance goals and/or future service requirements), separately
or in combination, in installments or otherwise, and under such other circumstances as the Committee may determine
at the date of grant or thereafter. Deferred Stock may be satisfied by delivery of Stock, other Awards, or a
combination thereof (subject to Section 12(k)), as determined by the Committee at the date of grant or thereafter.

(i) Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, upon termination of employment or service
during the applicable deferral period or portion thereof to which forfeiture conditions apply (as provided in the Award
document evidencing the Deferred Stock), all Deferred Stock that is at that time subject to such forfeiture conditions
shall be forfeited; provided that the Committee may provide, by rule or regulation or in any Award document, or may
determine in any individual case, that restrictions or forfeiture conditions relating to Deferred Stock will lapse in
whole or in part, including in the event of terminations resulting from specified causes.

(iii)) Dividend Equivalents. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, Dividend Equivalents on the specified
number of shares of Stock covered by an Award of Deferred Stock shall be either (A) paid with respect to such
Deferred Stock at the dividend payment date in cash or in shares of unrestricted Stock having a Fair Market Value
equal to the amount of such dividends, or (B) deferred with respect to such Deferred Stock, either as a cash deferral or
with the amount or value thereof automatically deemed reinvested in additional Deferred Stock, other Awards or other
investment vehicles having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such dividends, as the Committee shall
determine or permit a participant to elect.

(f) Bonus Stock and Awards in Lieu of Obligations. The Committee is authorized to grant Stock as a bonus, or to
grant Stock or other Awards in lieu of obligations of the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate to pay cash or deliver
other property under the Plan or under other plans or compensatory arrangements, subject to such terms as shall be
determined by the Committee.

(g) Dividend Equivalents. The Committee is authorized to grant Dividend Equivalents to a Participant, entitling
the Participant to receive cash, Stock, other Awards, or other property equivalent to
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all or a portion of the dividends paid with respect to a specified number of shares of Stock. Dividend Equivalents may
be awarded on a free-standing basis or in connection with another Award. The Committee may provide that Dividend
Equivalents shall be paid or distributed when accrued or shall be deemed to have been reinvested in additional Stock,

Awards, or other investment vehicles, and subject to restrictions on transferability, risks of forfeiture and such other
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terms as the Committee may specify.

(h) Other Stock-Based Awards. The Committee is authorized, subject to limitations under applicable law, to grant
to Participants such other Awards that may be denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to,
or otherwise based on, or related to, Stock or factors that may influence the value of Stock, including, without
limitation, convertible or exchangeable debt securities, other rights convertible or exchangeable into Stock, purchase
rights for Stock, Awards with value and payment contingent upon performance of the Company or business units
thereof or any other factors designated by the Committee, and Awards valued by reference to the book value of Stock
or the value of securities of or the performance of specified subsidiaries or affiliates or other business units. The
Committee shall determine the terms and conditions of such Awards. Stock delivered pursuant to an Award in the
nature of a purchase right granted under this Section 6(h) shall be purchased for such consideration, paid for at such
times, by such methods, and in such forms, including, without limitation, cash, Stock, other Awards, notes, or other
property, as the committee shall determine. Cash awards, as an element of or supplement to any other Award under
the Plan, may also be granted pursuant to this Section 6(h).

(i) Performance Awards. Performance Awards, denominated in cash or in Stock or other Awards, may be granted
by the Committee in accordance with Section 7.

7. Performance Awards, Including Annual Incentive Awards.

(a) Performance Awards Generally. The Committee is authorized to grant Performance Awards on the terms and
conditions specified in this Section 7. Performance Awards may be denominated as a cash amount, number of shares
of Stock, or specified number of other Awards (or a combination) which may be earned upon achievement or
satisfaction of performance conditions specified by the Committee. In addition, the Committee may specify that any
other Award shall constitute a Performance Award by conditioning the right of a Participant to exercise the Award or
have it settled, and the timing thereof, upon achievement or satisfaction of such performance conditions as may be
specified by the Committee. The Committee may use such business criteria and other measures of performance as it
may deem appropriate in establishing any performance conditions, and may exercise its discretion to reduce or
increase the amounts payable under any Award subject to performance conditions, except as limited under Sections
7(b) and 7(c) in the case of a Performance Award intended to qualify as "performance-based compensation” under
Code Section 162(m).

(b) Performance Awards Granted to Covered Employees. If the Committee determines that a Performance Award
to be granted to an Eligible Person who is designated by the Committee as likely to be a Covered Employee should
qualify as "performance-based compensation" for purposes of Code Section 162(m), the grant, exercise and/or
settlement of such Performance Award shall be contingent upon achievement of a preestablished performance goal
and other terms set forth in this Section 7(b).

(i) Performance Goal Generally. The performance goal for such Performance Awards shall consist of one or more
business criteria and a targeted level or levels of performance with respect to each of such criteria, as specified by the
Committee consistent with this Section 7(b). The performance goal shall be objective and shall otherwise meet the
requirements of Code Section 162(m) and regulations thereunder (including Regulation 1.162-27 and successor
regulations thereto), including the requirement that the level or levels of performance targeted by the Committee result
in the achievement of performance goals being "substantially uncertain." The Committee may determine that such
Performance Awards shall be granted, exercised and/or settled upon achievement of anyone performance goal or that
two or more of the performance goals must be achieved as a condition to grant, exercise and/or settlement of such
Performance Awards. Performance goals may differ for Performance Awards granted to anyone Participant or to
different Participants.

(i) Business Criteria. One or more of the following business criteria for the Company, on a consolidated basis,
and/or for specified subsidiaries or affiliates or other business units of the
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Company, shall he used by the Committee in establishing performance goals for such Performance Awards: (1)
revenues; (2) earnings from operations, earnings before or after taxes, earnings before or after interest, depreciation,
amortization, incentives, service fees or extraordinary or special items; (3) net income or net income per common
share (basic or diluted); (4) return on assets, return on investment, return on capital, or return on equity; (5) cash flow,
free cash flow, cash flow return on investment, or net cash provided by operations; (6) economic value created or
added; (7) operating margin or profit margin; (8) stock price or total stockholder return; and (9) strategic business
criteria, consisting of one or more objectives based on meeting specified market penetration or value added,
geographic business expansion goals, cost targets, customer satisfaction, employee satisfaction, management of
employment practices and employee benefits, supervision of litigation and information technology, and goals relating
to acquisitions or divestitures of subsidiaries, affiliates or joint ventures. The targeted level or levels of performance
with respect to such business criteria may be established at such levels and in such terms as the Committee may
determine, in its discretion, including in absolute terms, as a goal relative to performance in prior periods, or as a goal
compared to the performance of one or more comparable companies or an index covering multiple companies.

@ii1)) Performance Period; Timing for Establishing Performance Goals. Achievement of performance goals in
respect of such Performance Awards shall be measured over a performance period of up to one year or more than one
year, as specified by the Committee. A performance goal shall be established not later than the earlier of (A) 90 days
after the beginning of any performance period applicable to such Performance Award or (B) the time 25% of such
performance period has elapsed.

(iv) Performance Award Pool. The Committee may establish a Performance Award pool, which shall be an
unfunded pool, for purposes of measuring performance of the Company in connection with Performance Awards. The
amount of such Performance Award pool shall be based upon the achievement of a performance goal or goals based
on one or more of the business criteria set forth in Section 7(b) (ii) during the given performance period, as specified
by the Committee in accordance with Section 7(b) (iv). The Committee may specify the amount of the Performance
Award pool as a percentage of any of such business criteria, a percentage thereof in excess of a threshold amount, or
as another amount which need not bear a strictly mathematical relationship to such business criteria.

(v) Settlement of Performance Awards; Other Terms. Settlement of such Performance Awards shall be in cash,
Stock, other Awards or other property, in the discretion of the Committee. The Committee may, in its discretion,
increase or reduce the amount of a settlement otherwise to be made in connection with such Performance Awards, but
may not exercise discretion to increase any such amount payable to a Covered Employee in respect of a Performance
Award subject to this Section 7(b). Any settlement which changes the form of payment from that originally specified
shall be implemented in a manner such that the Performance Award and other related Awards do not, solely for that
reason, fail to qualify as "performance-based compensation" for purposes of Code Section 162(m). The Committee
shall specify the circumstances in which such Performance Awards shall be paid or forfeited in the event of
termination of employment by the Participant or other event (including a Change in Control) prior to the end of a
performance period or settlement of such Performance Awards.

(¢) Annual Incentive Awards Granted to Designated Covered Employees. The Committee may grant an Annual
Incentive Award to an Eligible Person who is designated by the Committee as likely to be a Covered Employee. Such
Annual Incentive Award will be intended to qualify as "performance-based compensation" for purposes of Code
Section 162(m), and therefore its grant, exercise and/or settlement shall be contingent upon achievement of
preestablished performance goals and other terms set forth in this Section 7(c).
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(i) Grant of Annual Incentive Awards. Not later than the earlier of 90 days after the beginning of any performance
period applicable to such Annual Incentive Award or the time 25% of such performance period has elapsed, the
Committee shall determine the Covered Employees who will potentially receive Annual Incentive Awards, and the
amount(s) potentially payable thereunder,
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for that performance period. The amount(s) potentially payable shall be based upon the achievement of a performance
goal or goals based on one or more of the business criteria set forth in Section 7(b) (ii) in the given performance
period, as specified by the Committee. The Committee may designate an annual incentive award pool as the means by
which Annual Incentive Awards will be measured, which pool shall conform to the provisions of Section 7(b) (iv). In
such case, the portion of the Annual Incentive Award pool potentially payable to each Covered Employee shall be
preestablished by the Committee. In all cases, the maximum Annual Incentive Award of any Participant shall be
subject to the limitation set forth in Section 5.

(ii)) Payout of Annual Incentive Awards. After the end of each performance period, the Committee shall determine
the amount, if any, of the Annual Incentive Award for that performance period payable to each Participant. The
Committee mayi, in its discretion, determine that the amount payable to any Participant as a final Annual Incentive
Award shall be reduced from the amount of his or her potential Annual Incentive Award, including a determination to
make no final Award whatsoever, but may not exercise discretion to increase any such amount. The Committee shall
specify the circumstances in which an Annual Incentive Award shall be paid or forfeited in the event of termination of
employment by the Participant or other event (including a Change in Control) prior to the end of a performance period
or settlement of such Annual Incentive Award.

(d) Written Determinations. Determinations by the Committee as to the establishment of performance goals, the
amount potentially payable in respect of Performance Awards and Annual Incentive Awards, the level of actual
achievement of the specified performance goals relating to Performance Awards and Annual Incentive Awards, and
the amount of any final Performance Award and Annual Incentive Award shall be recorded in writing in the case of
Performance Awards intended to qualify under Section 162(m). Specifically, the Committee shall certify in writing, in
a manner conforming to applicable regulations under Section 162(m), prior to settlement of each such Award granted
to a Covered Employee, that the performance objective relating to the Performance Award and other material terms of
the Award upon which settlement of the Award was conditioned have been satisfied.

8. Certain provisions Applicable to Awards.

(a) Stand-Alone, Additional, Tandem, and Substitute Awards. Awards granted under the Plan may, in the
discretion of the Committee, be granted either alone or in addition to, in tandem with, or in substitution or exchange
for, any other Award or any award granted under another plan of the Company, any subsidiary or affiliate, or any
business entity to be acquired by the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, or any other right of a Participant to receive
payment from the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate. Awards granted in addition to or in tandem with other
Awards or awards may be granted either as of the same time as or a different time from the grant of such other
Awards or awards. Subject to Section 12(k), the Committee may determine that, in granting a new Award, the
in-the-money value or fair value of any surrendered Award or award may be applied to reduce the exercise price of
any Option, grant price of any SAR, or purchase price of any other Award.

(b) Term of Awards. The term of each Award shall be for such period as may be determined by the Committee,
subject to the express limitations set forth in Section 6 (b) (ii).
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(¢) Form and Timing of Payment under Awards; Deferrals. Subject to the terms of the Plan (including Section
12(k)) and any applicable Award document, payments to be made by the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate upon
the exercise of an Option or other Award or settlement of an Award may be made in such forms as the Committee
shall determine, including, without limitation, cash, Stock, other Awards or other property, and may be made in a
single payment or transfer, in installments, or on a deferred basis. The settlement of any Award may be accelerated,
and cash paid in lieu of Stock in connection with such settlement, in the discretion of the Committee or upon
occurrence of one or more specified events (subject to Section 12(k)). Installment or deferred payments may be
required by the Committee (subject to Section 12(e)) or permitted at the election of the Participant on terms and
conditions established by the Committee. Payments may include, without limitation, provisions for the payment or
crediting of reasonable interest on installment or deferred payments or the grant or crediting of Dividend Equivalents
or other amounts in respect of installment or deferred payments denominated in Stock.
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(d) Exemptions from Section 16(b) Liability. With respect to a Participant who is then subject to the reporting
requirements of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act in respect of the Company, the Committee shall implement
transactions under the Plan and administer the Plan in a manner that will ensure that each transaction with respect to
such a Participant is exempt from liability under Rule 16b-3 or otherwise not subject to liability under Section 16(b)),
except that this provision shall not limit sales by such a Participant, and such a Participant may engage in other
non-exempt transactions under the Plan. The Committee may authorize the Company to repurchase any Award or
shares of Stock deliverable or delivered in connection with any Award (subject to Section 12(k)) in order to avoid a
Participant who is subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act incurring liability under Section 16(b). Unless otherwise
specified by the Participant, equity securities or derivative securities acquired under the Plan which are disposed of by
a Participant shall be deemed to be disposed of in the order acquired by the Participant.

9. Change in Control.

(a) Effect of "Change in Control" on Non-Performance Based Awards. In the event of a "Change in Control," the
following provisions shall apply to non-performance based Awards, including Awards as to which performance
conditions previously have been satisfied or are deemed satisfied under Section 9(b), unless otherwise provided by the
Committee in the Award document:

(1) All deferral of settlement, forfeiture conditions and other restrictions applicable to Awards granted under the Plan
shall lapse and such Awards shall be fully payable as of the time of the Change in Control without regard to deferral
and vesting conditions, except to the extent of any waiver by the Participant or other express election to defer beyond
the Change in Control and subject to applicable restrictions set forth in Section 12(a);

(i1)) Any Award carrying a right to exercise that was not previously exercisable and vested shall become fully
exercisable and vested as of the time of the Change in Control and shall remain exercisable and vested for the balance
of the stated term of such Award without regard to any termination of employment or service by the Participant other
than a termination for "cause" (as defined in any employment or severance agreement between the Company or it
subsidiary or affiliate and the Participant then in effect or, if none, as defined by the Committee and in effect at the
time of the Change in Control), subject only to applicable restrictions set forth in Section 12(a); and

(iii)) The Committee may, in its discretion, determine to extend to any Participant who holds an Option the right to
elect, during the 50-day period immediately following the Change in Control, in lieu of acquiring the shares of Stock
covered by such Option, to receive in cash the excess of the Change in Control Price over the exercise price of such
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Option, multiplied by the number of shares of Stock covered by such Option, and to extend to any Participant who
holds other types of Awards denominated in shares the right to elect, during the 50-day period immediately following
the Change in Control, in lieu of receiving the shares of Stock covered by such Award, to receive in cash the Change
in Control Price multiplied by the number of shares of Stock covered by such Award. In addition, the Committee may
provide that Options and SARs shall be subject to a mandatory cash-out in lieu of accelerated vesting, in order to limit
the extent of "parachute payments" under Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code.

(b) Effect of "Change in Control" on Performance-Based Awards. In the event of a "Change in Control," with
respect to an outstanding Award subject to achievement of performance goals and conditions, such performance goals
and conditions shall be deemed to be met or exceeded if and to the extent so provided by the Committee in the Award
document governing such Award or other agreement with the Participant.

(c) Definition of "Change in Control." A "Change in Control" shall be deemed to have occurred if, after the
Effective Date, there shall have occurred any of the following (whether as a result of a series of transactions or an
isolated event): (1) the consummation of any merger by the Company into another corporation or corporations which
results in the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to such transaction owning less than 50% of the
surviving Corporation; (2) the consummation of any acquisition (by purchase, lease or otherwise) of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company by any person, corporation or other entity or group thereof acting
jointly; (3) the acquisition of beneficial ownership,
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directly or indirectly, of voting securities of the Company (defined as Stock of the Company or any securities having
voting rights that the Company may issue in the future) and rights to acquire voting securities of the Company
(defined as including, without limitation, securities that are convertible into voting securities of the Company (as
defined above) and rights, options warrants and other agreements or arrangements to acquire such voting securities)
by any person, corporation or other entity or group thereof acting jointly, in such amount or amounts as would permit
such person, corporation or other entity or group thereof acting jointly to elect a majority of the members of the Board
of the Company, as then constituted; or (4) the acquisition of beneficial ownership, directly or indirectly, of voting
securities and rights to acquire voting securities having voting power equal to 25% or more of the combined voting
power of the Company's then outstanding voting securities by any person, corporation or other entity or group thereof
acting jointly unless such acquisition as is described in this part (4) is expressly approved by resolution of the Board
of the Company passed upon affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the Board and adopted at a meeting of the
Board held not later than the date of the next regularly scheduled or special meeting held following the date the
Company obtains actual knowledge of such acquisition (which approval may be limited in purpose and effect solely to
affecting the rights of a Participant under this Plan). Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, (i) any transaction that
involves a mere change in identity form or place of organization within the meaning of Section 368 (a) (1) (F) of the
Code, or a transaction of similar effect, shall not constitute a Change in Control.

(d) Definition of "Change in Control Price." The "Change in Control Price" means an amount in cash equal to the
higher of (i) the amount of cash and fair market value of property that is the highest price per share paid (including
extraordinary dividends) in any transaction triggering the Change in Control or any liquidation of shares following a
sale of substantially all assets of the Company, or (ii) the highest Fair Market Value per share at any time during the
60-day period preceding and 60-day period following the Change in Control.

10. Additional Award Forfeiture Provisions.
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(a) Forfeiture of Options and Other Awards and Gains Realized Upon Prior Option Exercises or Award
Settlements. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, each Award granted hereunder shall be subject to the
following additional forfeiture conditions, to which the Participant, by accepting an Award hereunder, agrees. If any
of the events specified in Section 10(b)(i), (ii), or (iii) occurs (a "Forfeiture Event"), all of the following forfeitures
will result, such forfeitures to be effective at the later of the occurrence of the Forfeiture Event or the Participant's
termination of employment:

(i) The unexercised portion of the Option, whether or not vested, and any other Award not then settled (except for an
Award that has not been settled solely due to an elective deferral by the Participant and otherwise is not forfeitable in
the event of any termination of service of the Participant) will be immediately forfeited and canceled upon the
occurrence of the Forfeiture Event; and

(i) The Participant will be obligated to repay to the Company, in cash, within five business days after demand is
made therefore by the Company, the total amount of Award Gain (as defined herein) realized by the Participant upon
each exercise of an Option or settlement of an Award (regardless of any elective deferral) that occurred on or after (A)
the date that is six months prior to the occurrence of the Forfeiture Event, if the Forfeiture Event occurred while the
Participant was employed by the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, or (B) the date that is six months prior to the
date the participant's employment by the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate terminated, if the Forfeiture Event
occurred after the Participant ceased to be so employed. For purposes of this Section, the term "Award Gain" shall
mean (i) in respect of a given Option exercise, the product of (X) the Fair Market Value per share of Stock at the date
of such exercise (without regard to any subsequent change in the market price of shares) minus the exercise price
times (Y) the number of shares as to which the Option was exercised at that date, and (ii) in respect of any other
settlement of an Award granted to the participant, the Fair Market Value of the cash or Stock paid or payable to
Participant (regardless of any elective deferral) less any cash or the Fair Market Value of any Stock or property (other
than an Award or award which would have itself then been forfeitable hereunder and excluding any payment of tax
withholding) paid by the Participant to the Company as a condition of or in connection with such settlement.
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(b) Events Triggering Forfeiture. The forfeitures specified in Section 10(a) will be triggered upon the occurrence
of anyone of the following Forfeiture Events at any time during the Participant's employment by the Company or a
subsidiary or affiliate or during the one-year period following termination of such employment:

(1) The Participant, acting alone or with others, directly or indirectly, prior to a Change in Control, (A) engages,
either as employee, employer, consultant, advisor, or director, or as an owner, investor, partner, or stockholder unless
the Participant's interest is insubstantial, in any business in an area or region in which the Company conducts business
at the date the event occurs, which is directly in competition with a business then conducted by the Company or a
subsidiary or affiliate; (B) induces any customer or supplier of the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, or other
company with which the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate has a business relationship, to curtail, cancel, not renew,
or not continue his or her or its business with the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate; or (C) induces, or attempts to
influence, any employee of or service provider to the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate to terminate such
employment or service. The Committee shall, in its discretion, determine which lines of business the Company
conducts on any particular date and which third parties may reasonably be deemed to be in competition with the
Company. For purposes of this Section 10(b) (i), a Participant's interest as a stockholder is insubstantial if it represents
beneficial ownership of less than five percent of the outstanding class of stock, and a Participant's interest as an owner,
investor, or partner is insubstantial if it represents ownership, as determined by the Committee in its discretion, of less
than five percent of the outstanding equity of the entity;
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(i) The Participant discloses, uses, sells, or otherwise transfers, except in the course of employment with or other
service to the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate, any confidential or proprietary information of the Company or
any subsidiary or affiliate, including but not limited to information regarding the Company's current and potential
customers, organization, employees, finances, and methods of operations and investments, so long as such information
has not otherwise been disclosed to the public or is not otherwise in the public domain, except as required by law or
pursuant to legal process, or the Participant makes statements or representations, or otherwise communicates, directly
or indirectly, in writing, orally, or otherwise, or takes any other action which may, directly or indirectly, disparage or
be damaging to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates or their respective officers, directors, employees,
advisors, businesses or reputations, except as required by law or pursuant to legal process;

(iii)) The Participant fails to cooperate with the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate by making himself or herself
available to testify on behalf of the Company or such subsidiary or affiliate in any action, suit, or proceeding, whether
civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, or otherwise fails to assist the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate
in any such action, suit, or proceeding by providing information and meeting and consulting with members of
management of, other representatives of, or counsel to, the Company or such subsidiary or affiliate, as reasonably
requested; or

(iv) The Participant is terminated for Cause.

(c) Agreement Does Not Prohibit Competition or Other Participant Activities. ~Although the conditions set forth in
this Section 10 shall be deemed to be incorporated into an Award, a Participant is not thereby prohibited from
engaging in any activity, including but not limited to competition with the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates.
Rather, the non-occurrence of the Forfeiture Events set forth in Section 10(b) is a condition to the Participant's right to
realize and retain value from his or her compensatory Options and Awards, and the consequence under the Plan if the
Participant engages in an activity giving rise to any such Forfeiture Event are the forfeitures specified herein. The
Company and the Participant shall not be precluded by this provision or otherwise from entering into other agreements
concerning the subject matter of Section 10(a) and 10(b).

(d) Committee Discretion. The Committee may, in its discretion, waive in whole or in part the Company's right to
forfeiture under this Section, but no such waiver shall be effective unless evidenced
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by a writing signed by a duly authorized officer of the Company. In addition, the Committee may impose additional
conditions on Awards, by inclusion of appropriate provisions in the document evidencing or governing any such
Award.

11. Employee Stock Purchase Program.

(a) Stock Available for Awards. The aggregate number of shares of Stock that may be granted as Options under
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") shall be determined on an annual basis by the Committee. Shares shall
be deemed to have been granted under the ESPP only to the extent actually issued and delivered pursuant to the
Award. To the extent that an Award lapses or the rights of the Participant terminate, any shares of Stock subject to
such Award shall again be available for the grant of future Stock Awards.

(b) Eligibility. An Award made pursuant to the ESPP may be granted to an individual who, at the time of grant, is
an employee of the Company or a subsidiary and has been determined to be eligible for participation. An Award made
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pursuant to the ESPP may be granted on more than one occasion to the same person; each Award shall be evidenced
by a written instrument duly executed by or on behalf of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no employee
of the Company or a subsidiary shall be granted an Option if such employee, immediately after the Option is granted,
owns stock possessing five percent (5%) or more of the total combined voting power or five percent (5%) or more of
the value of all classes of stock of the Company or any subsidiary. For the purpose of determining stock ownership,
the rules of Section 424(d) of the Code shall apply. In addition, the Stock which the Participant may purchase under
any outstanding Options shall be treated as stock owned by the Participant. The Committee may exclude the following
employees from receiving Options under the ESPP:

(1) Employees who have been employed by the Company or a subsidiary less than two (2) years;
(2) Employees whose customary employment with the Company or a subsidiary is twenty (20)
hours or less per week;
(3) Employees whose customary employment with the Company or a subsidiary is not for more
than five (5) months in any calendar year; and
(4) Highly compensated employees within the meaning of Section 414(q) of the Code.
(c) Employee Stock Purchase Plan Stock Option Agreement. Each Option shall be evidenced by an Option
Agreement between the Company and the Participant which shall contain such terms and conditions as may be
approved by the Committee and are consistent with Section 423 of the Code. The terms and conditions of the
respective Option Agreements need not be identical. Each Option Agreement shall specify the effect of termination of
employment, total and permanent Disability, Retirement or death on the exercisability of the Option. Under each
Option Agreement, a Participant shall have the right to appoint any individual or legal entity in writing as his or her
Beneficiary in the event of his or her death. Such designation may be revoked in writing by the Participant at any time
and a new Beneficiary may be appointed in writing on the form provided by the Committee for such purpose. In the
absence of such appointment, the Beneficiary shall be the legal representative of the Participant's estate.

(d) Option Period. The term of each Option shall be as specified by the Committee at the date of grant and shall be
stated in the Option Agreement; provided, however, that an Option may not be exercised after the expiration of:

(1) Five (5) years from the date such Option is granted if the ESPP requires that the Option price
must be not less than eighty-five percent (85%) of the Fair Market Value of the Stock at the
time the Option is exercised; or
(2) Twenty-Seven (27) months from the date such Option is granted if the Option provides for an
Option Price in some other permissible manner under Section 423 of the Code (such as a flat
dollar amount) .
(e) Limitation on Exercise of Option. An Option may be exercisable in whole or in such installments and at such
times as determined by the Committee and the applicable term relating to the exercise of the option shall be stated in
the Option Agreement and must be uniform for all employees
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with the following exceptions: (1) the Committee may limit the maximum number of Options that can be exercised
under the ESPP, and (2) the Committee may limit the amount of Options that all employees may be granted to a
specified relationship to total compensation or the base or regular rate of compensation; and provided, however, that
an Option may be exercised at the rate of at least twenty percent (20%) per year over five (5) years from the date it is
granted.
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(f) Special Limitation Regarding Exercise of Option. No employee may be granted an Option which permits his or
her rights to exercise Options under the ESPP of the Company and subsidiaries to accrue at a rate that exceeds
$25,000 of the Fair Market Value of such stock (determined at the time of grant) for each calendar year in which such
Option is outstanding at any time. For the purpose of this rule:

(1) The right to purchase Stock under an Option accrues when the Option (or any portion thereof)
first becomes exercisable during the calendar year;
(2) The right to purchase Stock under an Option accrues at the rate provided in the Option, but in
no case shall such rate exceed $25,000 of Fair Market Value of such stock (determined at the
time of grant) for anyone calendar year; and
(3) A right to purchase Stock which has accrued under one Option granted pursuant to the Plan
may not be carried over to any other Option.
The Committee shall determine, in accordance with applicable provisions of the Code, Treasury Regulations, and
other administrative pronouncements which Options will not constitute Options under Section 423 of the Code
because of such limitation and shall notify the Participant of such determination as soon as practicable after such
determination.

(g) Option Price. The purchase price of Stock issued under each Option shall be determined by the Committee and
shall be stated in the Option Agreement, but such purchase price shall not be less than the lesser of:

(1) An amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the Fair Market Value of the Stock at the
time the Option is granted; or
(2) An amount which under the terms of the Option may not be less than eight-five percent (85%)
of the Fair Market Value of such Stock at the time of the exercise of the Option.
(h) Options and Rights in substitution for Stock Options Granted by Other Companies. Options may be granted
under the Plan from time to time in substitution for stock options held by employees of companies who become, or
who became prior to the Effective Date of the Plan, employees of the Company or of any Subsidiary as a result of a
merger or consolidation of the employing company with the Company, or such subsidiary, or the acquisition by the
Company or a subsidiary of all or a portion of the assets of the employing company with the result that such
employing company becomes a subsidiary.

12. General Provisions.

(a) Compliance with Legal and Other Requirements. The Company may, to the extent deemed necessary or
advisable by the Committee, postpone the issuance or delivery of Stock or payment of other benefits under any Award
until completion of such registration or qualification of such Stock or other required action under any federal or state
law, rule or regulation, listing or other required action with respect to any stock exchange or automated quotation
system upon which the Stock or other securities of the Company are listed or quoted, or compliance with any other
obligation of the Company, as the Committee may consider appropriate, and may require any Participant to make such
representations, furnish such information and comply with or be subject to such other conditions as it may consider
appropriate in connection with the issuance or delivery of Stock or payment of other benefits in compliance with
applicable laws, rules, and regulations, listing requirements, or other obligations. The foregoing notwithstanding, in
connection with a Change in Control, the Company shall take or cause to be taken no action, and shall undertake or
permit to arise no legal or contractual obligation, that results or would result in any postponement of the issuance or
delivery of Stock or payment of benefits under any Award or the imposition of any other conditions on such issuance,
delivery or payment, to the extent that such postponement or other condition would represent a greater burden on a
Participant than existed on the 90th day preceding the Change in Control.
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(b) Limits on Transferability; Beneficiaries. No Award or other right or interest of a Participant under the Plan
shall be pledged, hypothecated or otherwise encumbered or subject to any lien, obligation or liability of such
Participant to any party (other than the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate thereof), or assigned or transferred by
such Participant otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or to a Beneficiary upon the death of a
Participant, and such Awards or rights that may be exercisable shall be exercised during the lifetime of the Participant
only by the Participant or his or her guardian or legal representative, except that Awards and other rights (other than
ISOs and SARs in tandem therewith) may be transferred to one or more transferees during the lifetime of the
Participant, and may be exercised by such transferees in accordance with the terms of such Award, but only if and to
the extent such transfers are permitted by the Committee, subject to any terms and conditions which the Committee
may impose thereon (including limitations the Committee may deem appropriate in order that offers and sales under
the Plan will meet applicable requirements of registration forms under the Securities Act of 1933 specified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission). A Beneficiary, transferee, or other person claiming any rights under the Plan
from or through any Participant shall be subject to all terms and conditions of the Plan and any Award document
applicable to such Participant, except as otherwise determined by the Committee, and to any additional terms and
conditions deemed necessary or appropriate by the Committee.

(c) Adjustments. In the event that any large, special and non-recurring dividend or other distribution (whether in
the form of cash or property other than Stock), recapitalization, forward or reverse split, Stock dividend,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, spin-off, combination, repurchase, share exchange, liquidation, dissolution or
other similar corporate transaction or event affects the Stock such that an adjustment is determined by the Committee
to be appropriate under the Plan, then the Committee shall, in such manner as it may deem equitable, adjust any or all
of (i) the number and kind of shares of Stock which may be delivered in connection with Awards granted thereafter,
(i1) the number and kind of shares of Stock by which annual per-person Award limitations are measured under Section
5(b) (iii) the number and kind of shares of Stock subject to or deliverable in respect of outstanding Awards, and (iv)
the exercise price, grant price or purchase price relating to any Award or, if deemed appropriate, the Committee may
make provision for a payment of cash or property to the holder of an outstanding Option (subject to Section 12(k)). In
addition, the Committee is authorized to make adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria included in,
Awards (including Performance Awards and performance goals and any hypothetical funding pool relating thereto) in
recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events (including, without limitation, events described in the preceding
sentence, as well as acquisitions and dispositions of businesses and assets) affecting the Company, any subsidiary or
affiliate or other business unit, or the financial statements of the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate, or in response
to changes in applicable laws, regulations, accounting principles, tax rates and regulations or business conditions or in
view of the Committee's assessment of the business strategy of the Company, any subsidiary or affiliate or business
unit thereof, performance of comparable organizations, economic and business conditions, personal performance of a
Participant, and any other circumstances deemed relevant; provided that no such adjustment shall be authorized or
made if and to the extent that the existence of such authority (i) would cause Options, SARs, or Performance Awards
granted under Section 8 to Participants designated by the Committee as Covered Employees and intended to qualify as
"performance-based compensation” under Code Section 162(m) and regulations thereunder to otherwise fail to qualify
as "performance-based compensation" under Code Section 162(m) and regulations thereunder, or (ii) would cause the
Committee to be deemed to have authority to change the targets, within the meaning of Treasury Regulation
1.162-27(e)(4)(vi), under the performance goals relating to Options or SARs granted to Covered Employees and
intended to qualify as "performance-based compensation" under Code Section 162(m) and regulations thereunder.

(d) Tax Provisions.

(1) Withholding. The Company and any subsidiary or affiliate is authorized to withhold from any Award granted,
any payment relating to an Award under the Plan, including from a distribution of Stock, or any payroll or other
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payment to a Participant, amounts of withholding and other taxes due or potentially payable in connection with any
transaction involving an Award, and to take such other action as the Committee may deem advisable to enable the
Company and Participants to satisfy
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obligations for the payment of withholding taxes and other tax obligations relating to any Award. This authority shall
include authority to withhold or receive Stock or other property and to make cash payments in respect thereof in
satisfaction of a Participant's withholding obligations, either on a mandatory or elective basis in the discretion of the
Committee. Other provisions of the Plan notwithstanding, only the minimum amount of Stock deliverable in
connection with an Award necessary to satisfy statutory withholding requirements will be withheld, except a greater
amount of Stock may be withheld if such withholding would not result in additional accounting expense to the
Company.

(i1)) Required Consent to and Notification of Code Section 83(b) Election. No election under Section 83(b) of the
Code (to include in gross income in the year of transfer the amounts specified in Code Section 83(b)) or under a
similar provision of the laws of a jurisdiction outside the United States may be made unless expressly permitted by the
terms of the Award document or by action of the Committee in writing prior to the making of such election. In any
case in which a Participant is permitted to make such an election in connection with an Award, the Participant shall
notify the Company of such election within ten days of filing notice of the election with the Internal Revenue Service
or other governmental authority, in addition to any filing and notification required pursuant to regulations issued under
Code Section 83(b) or other applicable provision.

(iii)) Requirement of Notification Upon Disqualifying Disposition Under Code Section 421(b). If any Participant
shall make any disposition of shares of Stock delivered pursuant to the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option under
the circumstances described in Code Section 421(b) (relating to certain disqualifying dispositions), such Participant
shall notify the Company of such disposition within ten days thereof.

(e) Changes to the Plan. The Board may amend, suspend or terminate the Plan or the Committee's authority to
grant Awards under the Plan without the consent of stockholders or Participants; provided, however, that any
amendment to the Plan shall be submitted to the Company's stockholders for approval not later than the earliest annual
meeting for which the record date is after the date of such Board action if such stockholder approval is required by any
federal or state law or regulation or the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on which the Stock
may then be listed or quoted, and the Board may otherwise, in its discretion, determine to submit other amendments to
the Plan to stockholders for approval and provided further, that, without the consent of an affected Participant, no such
Board action may materially and adversely affect the rights of such Participant under any outstanding Award.

(f) Right of Setoff. The Company or any subsidiary or affiliate may, to the extent permitted by applicable law,
deduct from and set off against any amounts the Company or it subsidiary or affiliate may owe to the Participant from
time to time, including amounts payable in connection with any Award, owed as wages, fringe benefits, or other
compensation owed to the Participant. Such amounts as may be owed by the Participant to the Company, including
but not limited to amounts owed under Section 10(a), although the Participant shall remain liable for any part of the
Participant's payment obligation not satisfied through such deduction and setoff. By accepting any Award granted
hereunder, the Participant agrees to any deduction or setoff under this Section 12(f).

(g) Unfunded Status of Awards; Creation of Trusts. The Plan is intended to constitute an "unfunded" plan for
incentive and deferred compensation. with respect to any payments not yet made to a Participant or obligation to
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deliver Stock pursuant to an Award, nothing contained in the Plan or any Award shall give any such Participant any
rights that are greater than those of a general creditor of the Company; provided that the Committee may authorize the
creation of trusts and deposit therein cash, Stock, other Awards or other property, or make other arrangements to meet
the Company's obligations under the Plan. Such trusts or other arrangements shall be consistent with the "unfunded"
status of the Plan unless the Committee otherwise determines with the consent of each affected Participant.

(h) Nonexclusivity of the Plan. Neither the adoption of the Plan by the Board nor its submission to the
stockholders of the Company for approval shall be construed as creating any limitations on the power of the Board or

a committee thereof to adopt such other incentive arrangements, apart from the
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Plan, as it may deem desirable, including incentive arrangements and awards which do not qualify under Code Section
162(m), and such other arrangements may be either applicable generally or only in specific cases.

(1) Payments in the Event of Forfeitures; Fractional Shares. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, in the
event of a forfeiture of an Award with respect to which a Participant paid cash consideration, the Participant shall be
repaid the amount of such cash consideration. No fractional shares of Stock shall be issued or delivered pursuant to
the Plan or any Award. The Committee shall determine whether cash, other Awards or other property shall be issued
or paid in lieu of such fractional shares or whether such fractional shares or any rights thereto shall be forfeited or
otherwise eliminated.

(j) Compliance with Code Section 162(m). It is the intent of the Company that Options and SARs granted to
Covered Employees and other Awards designated as Awards to Covered Employees subject to Section 7 shall
constitute qualified "performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 162(m) and regulations
thereunder, unless otherwise determined by the Committee at the time of allocation of an Award. Accordingly, the
terms of Sections 7(b), (c¢), and (d), including the definitions of Covered Employee and other terms used therein, shall
be interpreted in a manner consistent with Code Section 162(m) and regulations thereunder. The foregoing
notwithstanding, because the Committee cannot determine with certainty whether a given Participant will be a
Covered Employee with respect to a fiscal year that has not yet been completed, the term Covered Employee as used
herein shall mean only a person designated by the Committee as likely to be a Covered Employee with respect to a
specified fiscal year. If any provision of the Plan or any Award document relating to a Performance Award that is
designated as intended to comply with Code Section 162(m) does not comply or is inconsistent with the requirements
of Code Section 162(m) or regulations thereunder, such provision shall be construed or deemed amended to the extent
necessary to conform to such requirements, and no provision shall be deemed to confer upon the Committee or any
other person discretion to increase the amount of compensation otherwise payable in connection with any such Award
upon attainment of the applicable performance objectives.

(k) Certain Limitations Relating to Accounting Treatment of Awards. At any time that the Company is accounting
for stock-denominated Awards under Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 ("APB 25"), the Company intends that,
with respect to such Awards, the compensation measurement date for accounting purposes shall occur at the date of
grant or the date performance conditions are met if an Award is fully contingent on achievement of performance
goals, unless the Committee specifically determines otherwise. Therefore, other provisions of the Plan
notwithstanding, in order to preserve this fundamental objective of the Plan, if any authority granted to the Committee
hereunder or any provision of the Plan or an Award agreement would result, under APB 25, in "variable" accounting
or a measurement date other than the date of grant or the date such performance conditions are met with respect to
such Awards, if the Committee was not specifically aware of such accounting consequence at the time such Award
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was granted or provision otherwise became effective, such authority shall be limited and such provision shall be
automatically modified and reformed to the extent necessary to preserve the accounting treatment of the award
intended by the Committee. This provision shall cease to be effective if and at such time as the Company no longer
accounts for equity compensation under APB 25.

(1) Governing Law. The validity, construction, and effect of the Plan, any rules and regulations relating to the Plan
and any Award document shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without giving
effect to principles of conflicts of laws, and applicable provisions of federal law.

(m) Awards to Participants Outside the United States. The Committee may modify the terms of any Award under
the Plan made to or held by a Participant who is then resident or primarily employed outside of the United States in
any manner deemed by the Committee to be necessary or appropriate in order that such Award shall conform to laws,
regulations, and customs of the country in which the Participant is then resident or primarily employed, or so that the
value and other benefits of the Award to the Participant, as affected by foreign tax laws and other restrictions
applicable as a result of the Participant's residence or employment abroad shall be comparable to the value of such an
Award to a Participant who is resident or primarily employed in the United States. An Award may be modified under
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this Section 12(m) in a manner that is inconsistent with the express terms of the Plan, so long as such modifications
will not contravene any applicable law or regulation or result in actual liability under Section 16(b) for the Participant
whose Award is modified.

(n) Limitation on Rights Conferred under Plan. Neither the Plan nor any action taken hereunder shall be construed
as (i) giving any Eligible Person or Participant the right to continue as an Eligible Person or Participant or in the
employ or service of the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, (i1) interfering in any way with the right of the
Company or a subsidiary or affiliate to terminate any Eligible Person's or Participant's employment or service at any
time, (iii) giving an Eligible Person or Participant any claim to be granted any Award under the Plan or to be treated
uniformly with other Participants and employees, or (iv) conferring on a Participant any of the rights of a stockholder
of the Company unless and until the Participant is duly issued or transferred shares of Stock in accordance with the
terms of an Award or an Option is duly exercised. Except as expressly provided in the Plan and an Award document,
neither the Plan nor any Award document shall confer on any person other than the Company and the Participant any
rights or remedies thereunder.

(o) Severability; Entire Agreement. If any of the provisions of this Plan or any Award document is finally held to
be invalid, illegal or unenforceable (whether in whole or in part), such provision shall be deemed modified to the
extent, but only to the extent, of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability, and the remaining provisions shall not
be affected thereby; provided, that, if any of such provisions is finally held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
because it exceeds the maximum scope determined to be acceptable to permit such provision to be enforceable, such
provision shall be deemed to be modified to the minimum extent necessary to modify such scope in order to make
such provision enforceable hereunder. The Plan and any Award documents contain the entire agreement of the parties
with respect to the subject matter thereof and supersede all prior agreements (unless an employment agreement
entered into between the Company and the Participant specifically provides contradictory terms, in which case the
terms of the employment agreement shall govern), promises, covenants, arrangements, communications,
representations and warranties between them, whether written or oral with respect to the subject matter thereof.
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(p) Plan Effective Date and Termination. The Plan shall become effective if, and at such time as, the stockholders
of the Company have approved it by the affirmative votes of the holders of a majority of the voting securities of the
Company present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the subject matter at a duly held meeting of
stockholders at which a quorum is present. Unless earlier terminated by action of the Board, the Plan will remain in
effect until such time as no Stock remains available for delivery under the Plan and the Company has no further rights
or obligations under the Plan with respect to outstanding Awards under the Plan.
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APPENDIX IV (CHARTER AMENDMENTS)

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

PERFECTDATA CORPORATION

(Pursuant to Section 242 of
the Delaware General Corporation Law)

PerfectData Corporation (the "Corporation"), a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the
Delaware General Corporation Law (the "DGCL") does hereby certify that:

1. The name of the Corporation is PerfectData Corporation.

2. The Board of Directors of the Corporation unanimously duly adopted resolutions setting forth two (2) proposed
amendments (the "Amendments") to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended (the "Certificate
of Incorporation"), declaring the Amendments advisability to its stockholders, and directing that the Amendments be
considered at the 2005 annual meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation followed by a majority vote in favor of
the Amendments by the stockholders at such annual meeting. The Amendments adopted provide as follows:

(i) That Article First of the Certificate of Incorporation shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows:

"FIRST: The name of the corporation is Sona Mobile Holdings Corp. (hereinafter called the "Corporation").";

and

(i1) That the first sentence of Article Fourth of the Certificate of Incorporation would be amended in its entirety to read
as follows:

"FOURTH: The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is
92,000,000 shares, consisting of 90,000,000 shares of common stock, $.01 par value per share (the "Common Stock"),
and 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $.01 par value per share (the "Preferred Stock")."

3. That the Amendments herein certified have been duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of
the DGCL by the Board of Directors.
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4. This Certificate of Amendment shall become effective upon the filing hereof in the Office of the Secretary of State
of the State of Delaware.

Executed on this day of 2005.
PerfectData Corporation
By:
John Bush
President and Chief Executive Officer
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APPENDIX V (REVERSE SPLIT CHARTER AMENDMENT)

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

[PERFECTDATA CORPORATIONT*
(Pursuant to Section 242 of

the Delaware General Corporation Law)

[PerfectData Corporation]* (the "Corporation"), a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the
Delaware General Corporation Law (the "DGCL") does hereby certify that:

1. The name of the Corporation is [PerfectData Corporation].*

2. The Board of Directors of the Corporation, by [unanimous written consent pursuant to Section 141(f) of the
DGCL] [majority vote at a duly called meeting], duly adopted resolutions setting forth an amendment to the
Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), declaring such amendment
to be advisable and recommended that the amendment be put to a vote of the Corporation's stockholders, that the
issued shares of the Corporation's Common Stock on the date hereof shall be immediately, upon the filing of this
Certificate of Amendment, combined into a smaller number of shares of Common Stock in the ratio of new
shares for one old share.

3. To accomplish the foregoing, Article Fourth of the Certificate of Incorporation is hereby amended by inserting the
following paragraph at the end of Section A thereof:

"5. Reverse Split. Each share of the Corporation's Common Stock issued prior to the date hereof (the "Old
Common Stock"), will be automatically reclassified as and converted into new shares of Common Stock (the
"New Common Stock"). No fractional shares of New Common Stock shall be issued to the holders of record of Old
Common Stock in connection with the foregoing reclassification of shares of Old Common Stock. In lieu thereof, the
aggregate of all fractional shares otherwise issuable to the holders of record of Old Common Stock shall be issued to
the Corporation's transfer agent, as agent for, the accounts of all holders of record of Old Common Stock otherwise
entitled to have a fraction of a share issued to them. The sale of all of the fractional interests will be effected by the
transfer agent as soon as practicable after the date hereof on the basis of prevailing market prices of the New Common
Stock at the time of sale. After such sale and upon the surrender of the stockholders' stock certificates, the transfer
agent will pay to such holders of record their pro rata share of the net proceeds derived from the sale of the fractional
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interests. Each stock certificate that, immediately prior to the date hereof, represented shares of Old Common Stock
shall, from and after the date hereof, automatically and without the necessity of presenting the same for exchange,
represent that number of whole shares of New Common Stock into which the shares of Old Common Stock
represented by such certificate shall have been reclassified (as well as the right to receive cash in lieu of any fractional
shares of New Common Stock as set forth above); provided, however, that each holder of record of a certificate that
represented shares of Old Common Stock shall receive, upon surrender of such certificate, a new certificate
representing the number of whole shares of New Common Stock into which the shares of Old Common Stock
represented by such certificate shall have been reclassified, as well as any cash in lieu of fractional shares of New
Common Stock to which such holder may be entitled as set forth above."

4. That this Certificate of Amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the
DGCL.

*  Subject to name change.
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5. This Certificate of Amendment shall become effective upon the filing hereof in the Office of the Secretary of
State of the State of Delaware.

Executed on this day of ,200 .
[PerfectData Corporation]
By:
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(FORM OF PROXY)

PERFECTDATA CORPORATION
PROXY
FOR ANNUAL MEETING OF THE STOCKHOLDERS
,NOVEMBER , 2005
THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned hereby appoints Shawn Kreloff and John Bush, and each of them, with full power of substitution, as
proxies to vote the shares which the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of
PerfectData Corporation ("PerfectData") to be held at 825 Third Avenue, 32" Floor, New York, New York, on

, November , 2005 at 10:00 A.M., Eastern Time and at any adjournments thereof, hereby revoking any
proxies heretofore given, to vote all shares of common stock of PerfectData held or owned by the undersigned as
indicated on the proposals as more fully set forth in the Proxy Statement, and in their discretion upon such other
matters as may come before the meeting.

39



Edgar Filing: - Form
Please mark "'X"' your votes as indicated :
1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS: Shawn Kreloff, John Bush, Nicholas H. Glinsman. Bryan Maizlish, Frank J.
Fanzilli, Jr., Paul A McAleese, Michael P. Castellano and Joseph V. Vittoria
FOR election of all nominees
WITHHOLD vote from all nominees

FOR all nominees,

EXCEPT for nominee(s) listed below from whom vote is withheld.

2. Approval the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan of 2000 of PerfectData Corporation.

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

3. To approve an amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation that would change our name to "Sona Mobile
Holdings Corp."

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

4. To approve an amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation that would increase the number of shares of our
authorized shares of common stock to 90,000,000.

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
5. To grant to our board of directors discretionary authority to amend our Certificate of Incorporation to effect a
reverse stock split of our common stock at a ratio within the range from one-for-three to one-for-five at any time prior

to December 31, 2006.

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

(Continued, and to be signed, on the Reverse Side)

FOLD HERE

THIS PROXY WHEN PROPERLY SIGNED WILL BE VOTED IN THE MANNER DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE
UNDERSIGNED STOCKHOLDER. IF NO DIRECTION IS MADE, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR
PROPOSALS 1 THROUGH 5.

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the Notice of, and Proxy Statement for, the aforesaid Annual
Meeting.

Dated: , 2005
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Signature of Stockholder

Signature of Stockholder

NOTE: When shares are held by joint tenants, both should sign. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator,
trustee, or guardian, please give full title as such. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by President or
other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in partnership name by an authorized person.

IMPORTANT - PLEASE FILL IN, SIGN AND RETURN PROMPTLY USING THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.
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